
  CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      REGULAR MEETING & EXECUTIVE SESSION 

          Held at 16770 SE 82nd Dr. Clackamas, OR 97015 

  This Meeting will have both an in person and remote option for attending 

  June 13, 2024 at 6:00pm 

   AGENDA 
Public Comment: If a member of the public wishes to address the Board during a meeting, they are 
encouraged to inform Board staff through email to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm the day of the 
meeting. If a person will attend the meeting through Zoom and wishes to provide public comment, prior 
notice to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm on the day of the meeting is required in order to ensure 
access.  The notice should include the following information: (1) Full name; (2) Address/City/ZIP; (3) Email 
address or phone number to be used to access the Zoom meeting, so it can be unmuted; (4) 
District/Organization/Public; and (5) Topic of your public comment and or specific agenda item you wish to 
speak on. 

Members of the public are welcome to speak for a maximum of three minutes during a time designated on 
the agenda for public comment.  The speaker must state their name, address, and if they are a customer or 
not for the record. Public comment provided at the beginning of the agenda will be reserved for comment on 
agenda items, special presentations, letters, and complaints. Public comment as listed at the end of the agenda 
will be for the purpose of “wrapping up” any remaining concerns. 

Anyone who wishes to attend the meeting remotely may do so by internet at 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81936011874 or by calling the following number 1-253-215-8782 and join 
meeting/ 81936011874#. Passcode: 516826 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING @ 6:00pm 

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call - Sherry French, President
a. Approval of the Agenda

Public Comment (see blue box at the top of the agenda)  

Consent Agenda 
CA-1:   Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid: May 2024 

CA-2:   Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report 

CA-3:   Consider Approval of Contract Amendment with Cascade Columbia Exceeding 
the General Managers Signature Authority 

Action Items 

1. Resolution 06-2024: A Resolution Establishing Retail Water Rates, System
Development Charges, Miscellaneous Fees and Charges For Services – Todd Heidgerken,
General Manager

2. Consider First Reading, By Title Only, of Resolution 07-2024 Updating Board Policy-
Todd Heidgerken, General Manager & C. Robert Steringer, CRW Legal Counsel

3. Consider Approval of Resolution 08-2024 Approve Utility Billing Bad Debt Write-Off
for FY 2023-2024 Uncollectible Water Bills- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

4. Consider Resolution 09-2024- Updating the Wholesale Water Rates Charged to North
Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Next Page 

mailto:kholzgang@crwater.com
mailto:kholzgang@crwater.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81936011874
tel:+1%20253%20215%208782


5. Consider Approval of Contract Extension with Madrone Technology for IT Support, 
Equipment & Subscriptions Exceeding the General Managers Signature Authority-Todd 
Heidgerken, General Manager

6.  Consider Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Extension Between 
CRW and Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) for or Emergency Management 
Coordination Services- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager & Beth McGinnis, Emergency Manager

7. Consider Approval of Contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Services Exceeding the 
General Managers Signature Authority- Todd Heidgerken, General ManagerDELETED

Informational Reports 

8. Management Report – Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

9. Public Comment (see blue box at the top of the agenda)

Commissioner Business 
10. Commissioner Reports and Reimbursements

11. Election of Board officers- CRW Board of Commissioners

Adjourn regular meeting  

EXECUTIVE SESSION- will start immediately following the regular meeting 

1. Discuss information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection pursuant to ORS
192.660 (2) (f) and 192.355 (9) (a) and ORS 40.225

2. To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real
property transactions. 192.660 (2) (e)

3. To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor
negotiations ORS 192.660 (2) (d)

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for accommodations for persons 
with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Adora Campbell (503) 722-9226.     



























































































































































 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 1 

 

 

 

 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

 

 

 

Complete Revisions 

OctoberXXXXXXXJuly 201234 

 

 

 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 2 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

 

SECTION 1  BOARD OPERATION DEFINITIONS  

 

SECTION 2  BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD 

 

SECTION 3  BUDGET & FINANCE  

 

SECTION 4  BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

SECTION 5  GENERAL MANAGER’S ROLE  

 

SECTION 6  PURCHASING / CONTRACTING 

 

SECTION 7  COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

 

SECTION 8  COST OF WATER SERVICE & SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 3 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

  

 

SECTION 1   BOARD OPERATION 

 

1.1 Definitions 

1.2  Powers of the Board 

1.3  Functions of the Board 

1.4  Orientation 

1.5  Board Educational Development 

1.6  Compensation for Services & Reimbursement for Expenses 

1.7  Formulation of Policies 

1.8  Public Meetings 

1.9  Agenda Preparation 

1.10  Preparation for Board Meetings 

1.11  Procedures during Board Meetings 

1.12  Computer Policy 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 4 

Section 1.1  Definitions 

As used in these sections, unless the context requires otherwise: 

A. “Board of Commissioners” or “Board” means the governing body of Clackamas   

  River Water. 

B. “CRW” means Clackamas River Water or properties owned by Clackamas River 

Water. 

C. “General Manager” means the appointed Administrator of Clackamas River 

Water. 

 

Section 1.2  Powers of the Board 

A. The powers of the Board are outlined in Chapter 264 and Chapter 198 of the 

Oregon Revised Statutes relating to domestic water districts and special districts.  

The Board has these the following general responsibilities, consistent with the 

afore-statedthose statutes:   

1. Identify and adopt strategic policies priorities for CRW 

2. Hire, evaluate, and dismiss the General Manager 

3. Adopt the annual budget for CRW 

4. Adopt the Rates, Fees, and Charges schedule for CRW 

4. Make decisions in the best interest of CRW and not in the interest of a Board 

member 

5. Monitor execution of Board Policy to ensure compliance with Oregon Public 

Meeting Law (ORS 192)  

B. The Board may authorize ad-hoc advisory committees as it sees fit. 

1. The Board President or designee will outline the duties and responsibilities of 

each committee at the time of appointment. 

2. A board memberCommissioner may serve as an ex-officio member. 

3. Advisory committees shall comply with Oregon Public Meetings Law and are 

responsible for keeping providing any written records to District staff so they 

may beand ensuring they are made available to the public if requested. 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 5 

Section 1.3  Functions of the Board 

A. Policy Making 

1. The Board will establish strategic policy reserving to itself all authority and 

responsibility not otherwise assigned to the General Manager or others. 

2. The Board is CRW’s Local Contract Review Board pursuant to ORS 

279A.060. 

B. Oversight 

1. The primary responsibility of the Board is to make policy-level decisions for 

CRW, and to hire, evaluate and manage CRW’s General Manager, who will 

serve as CRW’s chief executive officer.  Administrative authority for the daily 

operations of CRW and the management of all CRW personnel is delegated to 

the General Manager to the extent reasonably possible.   

2. No individual Commissioner may direct or order a staff member on any 

matter that relates to the daily operations or administrative activities of CRW 

unless expressly authorized by the Board.  No individual Commissioner may 

order, direct, or conduct any review of personnel records of any staff member 

or any other record that is exempt under the Oregon Public Records Law 

unless expressly authorized by the Board.   

1.3.If any Commissioner should be delegated by the Board to exercise any 

administrative authority for CRW, that direction shall be in writing and shall 

state the express purpose for which authority is being granted and for what 

duration, and any such appointment shall be agreed upon between the Board 

and the General Manager.  The Board will select a general manager and 

delegate to this selected General Manager the responsibility for implementing 

and executing policies adopted by the Board. 

2.4.The Board will provide the financial means to implement Board policies in 

order to accomplish organizational goals and objectives as adopted by the 

Board of Commissioners. 

C. Planning/Vision 

1. The Board is committed to long-term planning as an essential activity to 

assure the viability of water service to water users in the region. 

2. The Board will develop functional philosophies in the form of vision, mission, 

and/or values statements that provide guidance to the Board in the execution 

of its responsibilities and to the staff and others involved in the operations.  

These are to be reviewed periodically to assure their continued applicability. 

3. The Board and General Manager will develop a priority sequence for short-

term activities.  The Board will make final selection of the activities that will 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 6 

be the responsibility of the General Manager. 

4.3.Annual pPriorities will be established by the Board and be consistent with 

long-term planning.  Areas to be considered for priority status will be 

balanced between community needs, District requirements, regulatory 

requirements, and recommendations of the General Manager. 

5.4.Conduct The Board will conduct a periodic review of rates and charges. 

D. Commissioner Assignments 

1. At least annually, Commissioners the Board will review the various 

organizations with which CRW has relationships and decide which 

organizations should have a Board representative assigned to them.  

Commissioners may volunteer for assignments to these entities based on areas 

of interest or tThe Board President may will assign a CRW representative to 

any organization the Board determines should have a representative from the 

Board, unless a different assignment process is required by agreement or 

lawmake the assignments.  

2. A Commissioner’s attendance at another organization’s meeting is in the 

Commissioner’s individual capacity, not in an official capacity, unless the 

Commissioner is assigned as an organizational representative pursuant to this 

section or the attendance is otherwise approved by the Board. 

1.3.If a Commissioner appears before another governmental agency or 

organization to give a statement on an issue relevant to CRW, that 

Commissioner must state whether the statement reflects personal opinion, is 

the official position of CRW, or both.  Additionally, if the Commissioner is 

representing CRW, the Commissioner must support and advocate for the 

official CRW position on the issue as established by vote of the Board. 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 7 

Section 1.4 Orientation 

A. Cooperating with Board Candidates 

The Board, through the General Manager, shall cooperate with candidates for the 

Board on an equal basis and will provide them with information about Board 

policies and other aspects of the operation of CRW upon request. 

B. Orienting New Board MemberCommissioners 

The Board and the General Manager shall assist each new member-elect to 

understand the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures.  If possible, 

orientation will be provided before the member-elect takes office. The General 

Manager will provide all appropriate information including: 

1. A copy of Board policies, including Local Contract Review Board Rules.  

2. A copy of the law relating to the operation of water districts.  

3. A copy of the Attorney General’s “Public Records and Meetings Manual.” 

3.4.A copy of the Oregon Government Ethics Commission publication “Guide for 

Public Officials.” 

 

 

Section 1.5 Commissioner Conduct    

The following Code of Conduct applies to Commissioners whenever they are acting in 

their official capacity, both in and outside of Board meetings. 

A. The Board shall not, to the extent possible, involve itself in the day-to-day 

operations of the District.  Without prior approval of the Board, no Commissioner 

may interfere with or engage in District operations, including programs, 

maintenance, personnel management, administration, enforcement of facility 

rules, planning, training, or other daily operations and responsibilities of the 

General Manager.  If the Board sees a need for an exception and asks a 

Commissioner to become involved in District operations, the Board will clearly 

state in writing the Commissioner’s operational duties/functions, and the Board 

President and General Manager shall agree to said arrangement prior to the 

Commissioner commencing involvement. 

B. Commissioners will assist the Board President in preserving order and decorum 

during Board meetings and will not delay or interrupt proceedings.  

Commissioners will comply with any ruling of the President or Board, and the 

following rules will be observed to maintain order and decorum during meetings:  



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 8 

1. Commissioners will review necessary information, including the agenda 

and meeting materials, before meetings, and will come to meetings 

prepared. 

2. Any Commissioner desiring to be heard will request to the President to be 

heard. Commissioners will be given an opportunity to speak at least once 

on any pending motion or agenda item.  Once recognized, the speaker will 

confine their remarks to the subject under consideration. 

3. When speaking on behalf of the Board or District, Commissioners will 

represent the Board’s official position, not their own personal opinion. 

4. Commissioners will be open and candid and should be succinct in stating 

their views.  Commissioners should focus on a single issue or topic at any 

one time and allow one another to finish speaking without interruption. 

5. Board discussions are to focus on CRW issues; Commissioners should 

avoid raising non-District issues not relevant to the current discussion.  

6. Commissioners should keep discussions moving and adhere to established 

time limits on discussions. 

7. Commissioners will refrain from criticizing or berating each other, staff, 

or members of the public.   

C. The Board will respect the separation between policymaking and administration 

(Board and General Manager functions respectively) as outlined in these Board 

Policies by observing the following communication policies with respect to CRW 

staff: 

1. The Board will work with CRW staff as a team in the spirit of mutual 

respect and support. 

2. Outside of Board meetings, Commissioners will not attempt to influence a 

CRW employee or the General Manager, or advocate for a certain 

outcome in regard to personnel matters, purchasing issues, the award of 

contracts or the selection of consultants.  However, Commissioners 

discussing these matters with the General Manager outside of Board 

meetings in a non-coercive manner is appropriate. 

3. Commissioners will, wherever possible, limit individual contact with 

CRW staff to the General Manager, management staff, and designated 

staff for requests that concern the relevant matter or matters, so as not to 

influence staff decisions or recommendations, interfere with their work 

performance, undermine management authority or prevent the Board as a 

whole from receiving information.  The General Manager will determine 

the most effective way to respond to Board requests. 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 9 

4. When expressing criticism to staff, either at a public meeting or through 

other communication, Commissioners will be professional and mindful of 

the role and responsibility of staff members. 

5. Any written materials or information requested of staff by Commissioners 

will be submitted to the entire Board and include a notation stating who 

requested the information. 

6. The Board President will refer comments or questions regarding CRW 

personnel or administration to the General Manager.  The General 

Manager may, at their discretion, reply to the inquiry directly or instruct 

the appropriate staff member to do so. 

D. Commissioners will protect the confidentiality of CRW information as follows: 

1. Commissioners will keep all written materials provided to them on matters 

that are confidential under law in complete confidence to ensure that the 

District position is not compromised.  No mention of the information read 

or heard should be made to anyone other than the Commissioners, General 

Manager, or legal counsel. 

2. All public statements, information or media releases relating to a 

confidential matter will be handled by the General Manager, legal counsel, 

or designated Commissioner. 

3. Unless required by law, no Commissioner may make public the 

discussions or information obtained in executive session.  The Board may 

censure a Commissioner who discloses confidential information or 

otherwise violates this policy. 

4. Commissioners will comply with the Oregon Public Records Law by 

retaining all documents they create that relate to the business of CRW, 

including their notes on documents, for the minimum period of time 

established by CRW’s public records retention policy and any other 

applicable law.  Commissioners may comply with this requirement by 

providing records to the employee designated by the General Manager as 

Executive Assistant to the Board for retention.  This obligation continues 

after a Commissioner leaves office. 

 

Section 1.56 Board Educational Development 

A. The General Manager will inform and make available information on 

conferences, meetings and publications which may be useful and informative. 

 

Section 1.67 Compensation for Services and Reimbursement for Expenses  



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 10 

Board Members will be compensated $50 for any water related meeting or conference attended 

on behalf of CRW.   

A. Commissioners will be compensated $50 for any water-related meeting or 

conference attended on behalf of CRW. The stipend is limited to $50 per day 

A.B. Board Members are reminded that the stipend is limited to $50 per day.  If 

additional meetings are attended in the same day or if you a Commissioner wants 

reimbursement for attendance at a meeting that has not been authorized by the 

Boardnon-authorized meetings, then prior Board approval is required. 

B.C. There is no reimbursement for mileage to and from CRW for meetings.  

C.D. Commissioners are not entitled to compensation for expenses that are included in 

the cost of an event registration. 

D.E. Commissioners shall request  are encouraged to notify CRW prior to purchasing 

supplies they use for CRW business from designated CRW staff.  CRW staff 

often can buy supplies at a lower cost than if the Commissioners makes the 

purchase on their own. 

E.F. Additional Criteria for Compensation or ReimbursementProvisions Regarding 

Attendance at Meetings or Events:  In order to qualify for compensation, the 

following must be met: 

1. To qualify for compensation or reimbursement, a meeting or event must be   It 

must be a public meeting or event that is related to CRW’s mission.  

Examples are meetings by of other Public public or Private private 

Entitiesentities, such as Chamber of Commerce meetings, SDAO or like 

Eventsevents, City city or County county meetings, monthly agenda 

preparation meetings, or any other meeting where there is a prior expense 

authorization by the CRW Board or the Board President.  But iIn no event 

shall Board MembersCommissioners receive compensation for meetings 

attended with staff at their own request. 

2. The Board memberCommissioner is encouraged to provide orally, or in 

writing, a summary of the meeting or event at the next regular Board meeting 

to the extent that it relates to CRW’s operations, planning, or policies. 

3. All requests for expense reimbursement must be submitted within 60 days of 

expense incurrence.  In the case of extenuating circumstances, exceptions may 

be made with approval from the Board President. The document 

reimbursement form must be signed and detailed withinclude the dates and 

times for the meetings attended. Commissioners will not be compensated for 

time or mileage if a request is not timely submitted.  

4. While Board membersCommissioners may attend meetings or events, Board 

memberCommissioners shall not make statements on behalf of the District or 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 11 

Board without prior approval of the content by the Board, unless it is already 

published and attributable to the District.  In all other circumstances, the 

Board memberCommissioner must be clear that statements are the individual 

position of the Board memberCommissioner and not the Board or District.  

5. If the above criteria are not met, Commissioners will not be compensated for time 

or mileage.  

F.G. Commissioners will submit expense reports for reimbursement to the 

CFOemployee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the 

Board, who and the CFO will then review that reimbursementthe report to verify 

that the expenses are in compliance with Board Policy.  If there arethe report 

includes expenses that are questionable or outside policy, the CFO employee 

designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board shall 

review the expense request with the General ManagerChief Financial Officer.  If 

the Chief Financial Officer is unable to confirm that an expense request complies 

with Board Policy, the General Manager will return the expense request to the 

Commissioner with direction that there is still disagreement the document shall be 

returned to the Commissioner and if they the Commissioner wishes to be 

reimbursed, still want reimbursement the Commissioner may submit their expense 

reimbursement directly to the Board for consideration.  The requestor must 

declare their conflict of interest and refrain from voting on their own expense 

submission.  The Board’s vote is the final resolution. 

G.H. The Board will follow and does adopts the CRW Policy 1-2.10.003 (Travel 

Expense Policy)staff policies for itself and will follow it.  

H.I. If a Board memberCommissioner uses his/hera personal vehicle to travel, the 

District will reimburse for travel at the then- existing IRS mileage rate.  However, 

no reimbursement will be paid for travel to and from CRW property. 

I.J.  No reimbursement shall be allowed for expenses incurred by or for spouses, 

guests or relatives of Board membersCommissioners.  No reimbursement shall be 

allowed for alcoholic beverages. 

J.K. If CRW is reimbursing the member for the expenses and costs of travel, the time 

spent traveling shall not be considered a meeting or event for which compensation 

for services can be claimed. 

K.L.  Frequent Flyer MilesTravel and Credit Card Perks -– CRW will book all travel 

and lodging for authorized travel by Commissioners.  Board 

memberCommissioners traveling on CRW-related business may pay for 

incidental travel expenses using personal credit cards, debit cards, and other 

payment methods that accrue “points” or other promotional benefitsnot   accrue 

frequent flyer miles or other promotional benefits in their personal accounts.   

L.M. The Board and individual Commissioners will comply with Oregon government 

ethics requirements in connection with any compensation or reimbursement issues 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 12 

decided by the Board.  Generally, a Commissioner making a request for 

compensation or reimbursement has When requests are brought before the Board 

where a direct conflict of interest that must be declared by the requesting 

Commissioner, and the Commissioner may not participate in the deliberation or 

decision on the request. exists, the Board must first declare a conflict of interest 

(abstentions are prohibited) and then identify a quorum to vote on the issue.  

Discussions and deliberation of the issue when there is a conflict is not allowed.   

     Updated per Board Res. 3/12/15 

Section 1.7 8  Formulation of Policies 

A. Proposals to adopt, change, delete, add to or repeal a policy may originate from 

several people including a Board member, General Manager, customer, employee, 

employee organization, or civic group. 

B.A. Proposed District policy amendments will be drafted by or at the direction of the 

General Manager for Board review. 

C.B. Adoption of new District policies, amendments of existing District policies, or 

repeal of existing District policies shall be made by resolution of the Board 

pursuant to changes, additions , deletions and repeal of established policies 

require a two-step procedure separated by no less than 28 days: 

1. Included Inclusion of the proposed action in on the public agenda with 

introduction, discussion, and deliberation at one meeting. 

2. Included inInclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with further 

deliberation and a vote to be held at a second meeting. 

2.3.The Board may, by unanimous vote, waive the requirement of two readings 

and take action on a District policy in a single meeting.   

3. Adoption of new policies, amendments and suspensions to existing policies 

shall be made by resolution of the Board.   

D. Amendment 

1. Board policies may only be amended by a majority vote after the proposed 

amendment has been reduced to writing and been placed on the agenda.  

E.C. SuspensionBoard Policies 

1. The Board may temporarily suspend Board policies may be suspended by a 

majority vote if the motion has been provided to all Commissioners in writing 

of members in the call for which the proposed suspension has been described 

in writing, or by unanimous vote of all members when no such written notice 

motion has been givenprovided. 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 13 

2. The board may vote to suspend the second reading and the 28-day passing 

period as it so chooses. 

3.2.Policies specific to board Board governmentgovernance, including these 

Board Policies, do not require a second reading or a 28-day passing period. 

 

Section 1.8 9  Public Meetings (See ORS 192.610 – 192.660695) 

 ORS 264.430 Proceedings of Board: The Board of Commissioners shall hold 

meetings at such time and place within the District as it may determine. The 

Board shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month on a day to be fixed 

by it and may hold special meetings under such rules as it may make. 

The Board has established the regular meeting date of record as the second Thursday of each 

month.  

A. The Board shall hold meetings at such time and place within the District as it may 

determine. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month on a 

day to be fixed by it and may hold special meetings under such rules as it may 

make. 

B. The Board has established the regular meeting date of record as the second 

Thursday of each month. 

A.C. The Board shall make every reasonable effort to commence all public meetings no 

later than five (5) minutes after the start time published in the meeting notice 

unless a delay in the start time is announced to the public at the scheduled start 

time. 

B.D. No publicly attended Board meeting shall extend beyond 10:00 p.m. or for a 

period of time longer than three hours unless the Board approves a motion to 

extend the except that such a meeting may extend for a specified additional time 

period approved by the Board. 

C.E. Any No Executive Session held following a public meeting shall not extend 

beyond 10:30 p.m. unless the Board approves a motion in public session to extend 

except that such athe meeting may extend for a specified additional time period 

approved by the Board. 

D.F. The Board adopts the definitions relating to public meetings as set forth in ORS 

192.610. 

E.G. The Board reserves the right to change the place, time, and date of such regular 

Board meetings and to call and hold such additional or special meetings, as shall 

be deemed necessary, as provided by law.  The Board President or two Board 

membersCommissioners may call special meetings.  If the date of a regular 

scheduled meeting is to be changed, not withstanding an emergency, the public 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 14 

must be given at least 30 14 days’ notice except in the event of an emergency.  

H. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding public 

meeting notices, including without limitation ORS 192.640.  Except in the case of 

emergency meetings, all meetings are to be posted and advertised as required by 

law.  The Board from time to time may require posting or publication of 

additional notices as it deems necessary to provide notice to the public. 

I. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding the 

location of meetings, access to meetings, accommodation for persons with 

disabilities, and the availability of interpreters as required by Oregon law, 

including without limitation ORS 192.630. 

J. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding minutes 

and record keeping of meetings, including without limitation ORS 192.650.  The 

full recordings of open meetings are deemed to be the official minutes of such 

meetings. 

K. The Board will comply with Oregon law regarding executive sessions, including 

without limitation ORS 192.660. 

L. The Board, through staff, will comply with Oregon law requiring remote access to 

meetings open to the public to the extent reasonably possible, including without 

limitation ORS 192.670.  The District may take actions necessary to exclude 

malicious disruptions of meetings, including requiring persons to notify the 

District in advance if they wish to provide public testimony in a meeting so access 

permissions may be granted. 

M. Commissioners will comply with the requirements of ORS 192.630, including 

those provisions prohibiting three or more Commissioners from meeting outside a 

properly noticed public meeting for the purpose of deciding on or deliberating 

toward a decision on any matter that will or may be decided by the Board, except 

as otherwise provided by ORS 192.610 to 192.705.  For purposes of this policy, 

“meeting” includes (1) gathering in a physical location; (2) using electronic, video 

or telephonic technology to be able to communicate contemporaneously among 

participants; (3) using serial electronic written communication among 

participants; or (4) using an intermediary to communicate among participants.  

N. The Board and each Commissioner will comply with ORS 192.700, requiring 

annual training on compliance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law.  The Board 

directs the General Manager to arrange for Board training through a method that 

complies with ORS 192.700.   

F.O. Any Commissioner who has a question about compliance with Oregon Public 

Meetings Law may direct the question to the General Manager.  The General 

Manager, may, but is not required to, direct the question to the District’s General 

Counsel. 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 15 

G.P. The District will use the Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual 

as a guidance document. 

Section 1.910 Agenda Preparation  

A. The General Manager will draft a proposed agenda for Board meetings and 

present the draft to the Board President and Secretary for review approximately 

two weeks prior to the meeting in question.  The Board President and Secretary 

will approve the Board meeting agenda with any revisions they might make to the 

draft agenda.   

A.B. Any Commissioner may request that an item be placed on the agenda for a Board 

meeting.  Agenda items for Board Meetings are submitted to the Board Secretary 

on a monthly basis to be presented to the Board President for approval.  All items 

must be submitted to the employee designated by the General Manager as 

Executive Assistant to the Board no later than 17 days before the scheduled 

meeting.  The Board President and Secretary will decide whether the matter is 

placed on the agenda. 

B.C. The Board President may approve, add or delete agenda items prior to approval of 

the agenda.  The Board President can add, edit or delete emergency items up to 

the time of the Board Meeting. 

C.D. The Board President may add or review agenda items to the agendaby majority 

vote at the time the agenda is approved by the Board, at any time, at his/her 

discretion.  

 

 

Section 1.1011 Preparation for Board Meetings  

A. The Agency’s Executive Assistant employee designated by the General Manager 

as Executive Assistant to the Board shall prepare, distribute, and post all public 

notices. 

B. The agenda serves as the public notice of the time and place of the meeting and 

will be distributed to the Board, and interested persons, including news media, 

which who have requested notice. The agenda will be posted at the CRW 

administration building, the CRW web page, and other locations as designated by 

the Board.  

C. Board memberCommissioners will receive a Board packet.   

D. Other interested persons may request a packet, in writing, to from CRW’s the 

Executive Assistant to the Boardemployee designated by the General Manager as 

Executive Assistant to the Board. CRW may charge for paper copies of the Board 

packet per CRW’s public records policies.  



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 16 

      Sect. 1.9 and 1.10 updated per Board 1/8/15  

 

  

Section 1.11 12  Procedures during Board Meetings 

A. Except as otherwise provided by state law, These Board policyPolicies, as 

supplemented by , and/or Board Motion “Robert’s Rules of Order” (Revised), 

shall guide the Board in its deliberations except as otherwise required by state 

law.  Rules may be amended at any meeting by majority vote.  The order of 

business may be suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of those present. 

B. Public Participation 

1. The Board will provide a time at each regular meeting for public comment on 

non-agenda items.  The Executive Assistant employee designated by the 

General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board will provide a process 

for those wanting to make public comment. All remarks should be addressed 

to the Board as a body.  Each person is allowed a maximum of three minutes 

unless allocated additional time by the Board.  Time may not be yielded or 

allocated by one person to another.  

2. Meeting Conduct – Persons attending and making statements shall do so in a 

courteous, professional manner; common respect will be maintained among 

all participants.  The Board President has inherent authority to keep order and 

to impose any reasonable restrictions necessary for the efficient and orderly 

conduct of the meeting.  The President may regulate the order and length of 

appearances and limit appearances to presentations of relevant points and to 

limit repetitive and redundant comment.  Only Board memberCommissioners 

or the General Manager may ask questions of a person, staff member, or 

attendee making a presentation or giving testimony.  Questions from the 

audience to staff members or guests will not be allowed.  The President is 

authorized to stop interruptions of Board deliberations or attempts to debate 

with staff, other meeting attendees, or Board memberCommissioners. The 

President may, to the extent allowed by law, exclude a person for not 

complying with meeting policy or causing a disturbance. 

C. Votes will be recorded.  Any member Commissioner may request a vote be 

changed if such request is made prior to consideration of the next order of 

business. 

D. Three members Commissioners shall constitute a quorum.  Commissioners may 

appear by telephonic or electronic means.  Commissioners appearing remotely 

shall be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum  so long as all 

Commissioners can speak to and hear each other. If only a quorum is present, a 

unanimous vote is required to approve a motion. 

E. The Board generally makes decisions byMembers may request a roll-call vote.  In 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 17 

the event that a vote is not taken by roll call, any Commissioner may require that 

a roll-call vote be conducted if the request is stated promptly after the vote occurs. 

F. Members may append to the record, at the time of voting, a statement indicating 

the reason for the vote or the reason for abstaining. 

G. Members must declare a conflict of interest and abstain from voting when 

required to do so by law and may abstain on the basis of a conflict or other reason 

when allowed to do so by law. 

 

Section 1.1213 Computer Policy 

Objective:  To establish the respective responsibilities of CRW and the Commissioners in 

regard to District-approved portable electronic communication devices purchased by the 

District for use by the Commissioners to conduct District-related business.  As used 

herein, portable electronic communication devices shall include all related equipment and 

hardware, such as but not limited to, modem, printer, software and Internet access.All 

electronic devices and related equipment are and will remain property of the District. 

A. The District will provide an portable electronic communication device to each 

Commissioner for his/hertheir use. 

B. Commissioners will sign the District’s IT Asset Acknowledgement Form when issued 

any device.  The Commissioner will acknowledge agreement to the District’s IT 

policies. 

B.C. The District will provide basic training in the use of the portable electronic 

communication devices and will provide technical support for the care and 

maintenance of the hardware and softwaredevice.  The portable electronic 

communication devices will be the sole property of CRW. 

C.D. CRW shall be responsible for the cost of the maintenance and/or replacement of 

any defective equipment and/or software, the cost of connection to the Internet, and 

the cost of use of the Internet for District purposes. 

D.E. At the end of the term of the Commissioner’s service on the Board, or resignation 

from the Board, the Commissioner will return it all District property to the District 

within thirty (30) days ofimmediately upon vacating office.  

E.F. CRW will provide the capability to interface with the connections of CRW. 

F.G. If the portable electronic communication device is damaged because of a 

negligent or intentional act, or other act for which the commissioner is responsible, 

the Commissioner will be responsible for its replacement costs. 

H. Information received on or maintained on the portable electronic communication 

devices is a public record and may be subject to disclosure under ORS Chapter 192.  



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 18 

All such information must be preserved indefinitely unless a complete copy is 

provided to the General Manager for the District to preserve.  Commissioners shall 

not cCommunicatione via the portable electronic communication devices in a manner 

that shall not violates the public meetings law under ORS Chapter 192. 

G.I. Commissioners are encouraged to use District-approved devices for 

communications related to District business in order to support District retention of 

public records and to reduce the likelihood that a Commissioner’s personal devices 

must be searched for public records. Public meetings law under ORS Chapter 192. 

                                                                          Section 1.12 Revised per Board 10.16.14 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 2 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

 

SECTION 2  BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD 

 

2.1 Number of Positions and Terms 

2.2 Officers 

2.3 Duties of the President 

2.4 Duties of the Secretary 

2.5 Duties of the Treasurer 

2.6 Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board 

2.7 Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel 

2.8 Selection and Duties of the Auditor 

2.9 Minutes  

2.10 Budget Hearing    



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 3 

Section 2.1  Number of Positions and Terms 

A. Unless appointed, the Board shall consist of five members serving four (4) year 

terms, elected by CRW voters pursuant to ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264. 

B. No person, elected or appointed, shall be sworn in unless the qualifications set 

forth in ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264 are met.  If an eligibility question arises, 

the Board will obtain an opinion from legal counsel prior to swearing in. 

C. Unless filling a vacancy, terms start officially on July 1.  A new member must 

qualify by taking an oath of office before assuming the duties of the position. 

D. Should a vacancy occur on the Board, that vacancy will be advertised and the 

Board will select an individual from among those indicating their interest.   ORS 

198.320 will be followed in fulfilling this procedure. 

 

Section 2.2  Officers 

A. The officers of the Board shall consist of: 

1. President 

2. Secretary 

3. Treasurer 

B. At the first meeting in July of each year, the Board shall elect from its members 

the officers for the ensuing year effective upon their election.  In the event that 

there will be no change in the Board’s membership on July 1 of a given year, the 

Board may in its discretion elect officers during a regular meeting in June of that 

year, effective at the beginning of the first meeting in July.  

C. The term of office for the officers shall be for one (1) year as provided in ORS 

264.  

D. Before a board member may take the position of an officer of the board they must 

provide proof of the ability to be bonded for $20,000 of financial lossThe Board 

shall require a bond or an irrevocable letter of credit of any Commissioner or any 

officer or employee of the district who is charged with possession and control of 

district funds and properties as set out in ORS 198.220.  

 

Section 2.3 Duties of the President 

A. The President shall preside at all meetings, shall have the right to make motions, 

discuss questions and vote on any issue. 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 4 

B. The President shall sign, on behalf of the Board, contracts, deeds and other similar 

documents as may require representative signature. 

C. The President shall appoint all committees except the Budget Committee, subject 

to approval of a majority of the Board, and perform all other duties as set forth in 

Board policies and rules.  

D. The President shall appoint, in the absence of the Secretary, a Board 

memberCommissioner to temporarily act in that capacity, subject to the approval 

of the Board. 

E. The President, in addition to the Treasurer, shall sign short-term debt notes unless 

otherwise directed by the Board. 

 

Section 2.4  Duties of the Secretary 

A. In the absence of the President, the Secretary shall perform the duties and have 

the rights and obligations of the President. 

B. In the absence of the Treasurer, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the 

Treasurer. 

C. Compile the agenda as described by Board policy. 

 

Section 2.5 Duties of the Treasurer 

A. In the absence of both the President and Secretary, the Treasurer shall perform the 

duties and have the rights and obligations of the President. 

B. The Treasurer, in addition to the President, shall sign short-term debt notes. 

 

Section 2.6  Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board 

It shall be the duty of the General Manager to perform the following functions as Clerk of 

the Board: 

A. Handle correspondence of special interest to the Board as follows: 

1. Ensure appropriate preparations have been made for Board Meetings 

2. Attend all Board meetings  

3. Ensure records are taken to record Board decisions. 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 5 

Section 2.7  Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel 

A. The Board shall select a general General or other legal cCounsel for CRW and 

negotiate the terms and conditions of the General Ccounsel’s duties.  The General 

Counsel will be authorized, in coordination with the General Manager, to engage 

special legal counsel for matters the General Counsel cannot perform directly. 

B. General Legal cCounsel shall advise the Board on specific legal problems 

submitted by the Board or the General Manager and recommend a course of 

action. 

C. The General Manager, or authorized staff, has authority to seek legal counsel 

from CRW’s counsel General Counsel as deemed advisable by the General 

Manager on matters relating to legal issues.  Upon engagement of special counsel, 

tThe General Manager shall immediately advise the Board of such the 

engagement of special counsel.   

C.D. With Upon receiving such the approval or consensus of the Board, Board 

membersCommissioners may seek clarification from CRW’s legal counsel on 

matters that affect or of current litigation affecting CRW or a matter that could 

affect CRW. All such requests from individual Board memberCommissioners, 

except for requests dealing with the hiring, termination or performance issues of 

the General Manager, shall be submitted to counsel through the General Manager 

and shall be in writing with copy to the entire Board.  All requests to counsel 

relating to the hiring, termination, or performance issues of the General Manager 

shall be in writing with copy to the entire Board. 

D.E. Legal counsel shall advise the Board of any action, or proposed action of the 

Board or CRW, that is not in compliance with the law. 

E.F. Legal counsel shall not take action on any matter unless directed to do so by the 

Board or the General Manager.   

F.G. When a non-represented employee of the CRW is called to testify or otherwise 

required to provide information on legal matters arising out of the scope of his or 

hertheir employment with CRW, and to which he or she isthey are not a named 

party or the subject of disciplinary action, the General Manager may authorize 

legal representation during such testimony to protect the interest of CRW.   A 

Commissioner may request and obtain legal representation, if authorized by the 

Board in advance, under similar circumstances. 

G.H. Legal cGeneral Counsel shall be the designated the registered agent of CRW, 

pursuant to ORS 198.340, unless otherwise designated by the Board. 

 

Section 2.8  Selection and Duties of the Auditor 

A. The Board shall select the auditor for CRW.  This selection will be done in a 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 6 

manner to allow timely preparation of the audit and cover audit services for a 

period of three (3) years. No contract shall be extended or renewed for more than 

two (2) terms without Board approval.  This shall not prevent an incumbent 

service provider from responding to a Request for Proposal (RFP). 

B. The auditor shall: 

1. Examine the accounts of CRW at the close of every fiscal year in 

accordance with applicable Aaccounting Standards standards and laws. 

2. Include such tests of the accounting records and other such auditing 

procedures as are necessary in the circumstances. 

 

3. Render an opinion on the financial statements prepared at the close of the 

fiscal year. 

4. Support staff in preparing financial statements for publication as required 

by law. 

5. Make recommendations to the Board concerning CRW accounting 

records, procedures and related activities. 

6. Perform such other related services as requested by the Board. 

7. Review the written accounting policies, practices, and procedures and 

render an opinion for the Board. 

 

Section 2.9  Minutes  

A. The Board shall keep minutes of all its meetings in accordance with the 

requirements of ORS Cchapter 192.  Recordings of meetings, when created, shall 

serve as the official minutes of the meetings.   

A.B. Board meeting minutes, including recordings constituting official minutes, will be 

preserved permanently.  Rrecordings not constituting official minutes will be kept 

for a minimum of two one (21) year after minutes are prepared and approved.  All 

other meeting materials will be kept for a minimum of five (5) years.  The District 

will follow Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division public record retention 

rules with respect to minutes and meeting materials.s in accordance with the 

requirements of ORS Chapter 192.  Recordings shall be available to the public 

within a reasonable time after the meeting. 

B.C. Executive sessions will be recorded.  

C.D. According to ORS 192.660, CRW has determined that any information discussed 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 7 

during Executive Session is confidential and non-disclosable unless specifically 

authorized by the Board or as required or as excluded by law. 

  

Section 2.10  Budget Hearing  

A.  The annual hearing on the budget shall be held after the budget is approved by the 

budget committee and at the time and place designated in the notice of the 

meeting required by ORS 294.416 - 294.430. 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 1 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

SECTION 3  BUDGET AND FINANCE  

 

3.1  Formulation of Budget Document 

3.2  Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities 

3.3  Budget Administration 

3.4  Banking Services 

3.5  Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property 

3.6  Investment of Funds 

3.7  Borrowing 

3.8  Acknowledgement of Payments  

3.9  Accounting Policy 

3.10  Audit 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 2 

Section 3.1    Formulation of Budget Documents 

A. The adopted budget document shall serve as the financial plan for operation and 

provide guidelines for carrying out the goals and objectives of CRW. 

B. Within the budget process the Board shall appoint the Budget Committee 

membership, appoint the CRW Budget Officer, and adopt the budget. 

C. The CRW budget shall be prepared and adopted in full compliance with State of 

Oregon Local Budget Law. 

D. The Budget Officer will annually review the existing CRW capitalized 

items/facilities to determine regular maintenance and future needs.  The review 

will relate to changing laws, area growth and/or fire control.  All material 

jobs/projects are to be included in the Capital Improvement Program. 

Legal References ORS 294.305 TO to 294.520, ORS 294.565 

 

Section 3.2    Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities 

A. The Budget Committee shall consist of the five (5) members of the Board of 

Commissioners and five (5) community members.  The Board shall establish a 

process for appointment of community members to the Budget Committee.  

Community members of the Budget Committee will serve for a four (4) year term 

members shall be responsible for establishing a process for consideration and 

subsequent appointment by the Board of Commissioners, for a four (4) year term. 

B. At the Budget Committee’s first meeting, the Board President shall open the 

budget meeting.  The Budget Committee shall select a chairperson and vice-chair.  

C. The responsibilities of the Budget Committee are:  

1. Approve the level of expenditures and set the corresponding tax levy 

requirements, if necessary, to balance each fund.  

2. Review and, if necessary, revise the proposed budget. 

3. Be aware of the legal constraints imposed upon CRW. 

4. Be familiar with the Budget Document and what it means. 

5. Approve the budget. 

6. Be involved in the supplemental budget activity as required by local budget 

law. 

  



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 3 

 

 

D. The hearing on the budget shall be held after the budget is approved by the 

Budget Committee and at the time and place designated in the notice of the 

meeting required by ORS 294.438 - 294.453. 

D.E. The Board of Commissioners shall adopt the budget, make appropriations, and 

determine the tax levies, if necessary, to finance the programs approved to meet 

CRW goals and objectives. 

Legal References   ORS 294.414, ORS 294.428, ORS 294.456      Sect.3.2 Updated 2/15  

                                                                                               per Board Resolution  

 

Section 3.3    Budget Administration 

A. The adopted budget is the financial plan developed to carry out the programs 

supporting CRW's goals and objectives. 

B. The General Manager is authorized to approve expenditures up to the amount 

appropriated by the budget and in accordance with Local Contract Review Board 

Rules and any resolutions of the Board. 

C. The budget may be amended to reflect changes in budget categories. 

D. The Board will be provided financial reports, on a regularly scheduled basis, in 

which actual revenues and expenditures will be compared with budget. 

Legal References   ORS 294.456 

 

Section 3.4    Banking Services 

A. The General Manager through the Chief Financial Officer will recommend, and 

the Board will approve, the selection of the banking entity utilized by CRW. 

B.  Annually, sStaff will advise the Board of any changes to the status of banking 

signatories. 

Legal References ORS chapter 264 

 

Section 3.5      Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 4 

A. The purchase, receipt of real property or property interests by donation, lease, 

exchange, sale, or gift of all real property or real property interest by CRW must 

have the approval of the Board, provided that any acquisition or disposition of 

real property or real property interest having a fair market value of $2075,000 or 

less, and any disposition of a public utility easement,  may be made by the 

General Manager, as delegated authority, in accordance with this policy.  As used 

in this policy, “disposition” shall mean the sale, exchange, or other transfer of title 

or other interest in real property.  

 

B. Any donation or gifting of CRW property, regardless of value, shall be donated in 

accordance with the following order of priorityguidelines:   

 

1. The method of donating or gifting of CRW property should be based on 

the type of property, the value of the property, administrative costs, and 

other factors to determine which method represents the greatest benefit to 

the public. To federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental 

entities 

 

2. CRW may donate or gift property to governmental or quasi-governmental 

entities, private utility companies having the ability to reuse the property 

for the benefit of District customers, on non-profit entities. 

  

2.3. The General Manager shall comply with applicable requirements 

and conditions imposed as part of any funding agreement or grant. Any 

disposition of property or property interests in excess of $75,000 shall 

comply with applicable law and the appraisal requirements of this policy 

as stated below.To non-profit entities serving a wide spectrum within the 

District boundaries. 

 

3. To non-profit entities having a narrower focus within the District 

boundaries. 

 

4. To non-profit entities serving within the State of Oregon. 

 

5. To private utility companies having the ability to reuse the facilities 

located on the property. 

 

6. To private utilities having the ability to use the property.  

 

 In the event that Federal or State funding is to be used as part of the entirety of the 

purchase price, the General Manager shall comply with applicable requirements 

and conditions imposed as part of the Federal or State funding agreement or grant. 

Any disposition of property or property interests in excess of $20,000 shall 

comply with applicable law and the appraisal requirements of this policy as stated 

below. 

 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 5 

C. The General Manager shall project site needs in advance and the Board, with 

advice and counsel of the General Manager, shall select sites prior to immediate 

need.  Such sites shall be chosen with a view to best serve the residents and 

properties of the whole District and will be based on demographic data, growth 

projections, availability, and cost of land.   Any proposed acquisition of real 

property or real property interests in which a District employee or Board 

memberCommissioner has an interest shall be disclosed to the entire Board in a 

public meeting and any action taken on such acquisition shall be in accordance 

with ORS Chapter 244. 

 

D. Selection of specific sites will depend upon county planning requirements, 

accessibility and relationship to the street system, availability of utilities, 

topography of the land and ease of exit and entry of emergency equipment. 

 

E.D. Sites that have a fair market value of $2075,000 or more and become surplus to 

CRW's needs shall be declared such by Resolution of the Board and shall be 

considered for sale, exchange, gift or lease pursuant to State statute and this 

policy. 

 

F.E. Acquisition or disposition of real property or real property interests shall be 

accomplished pursuant to ORS 264.210, this policythese Board Policies, and, in 

the event the exercise of eminent domain is necessary, ORS Chapter 35.  All fair 

market value estimates, market studies, or appraisals as specified and detailed 

below shall be obtained from a real estate broker or appraiser having all necessary 

certifications and licenses in the State of Oregon and having knowledge of the 

real estate market in the location and type of property being acquired or disposed.  

1. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager 

to have a fair market value of $2075,000 or less, the General Manager 

shall obtain a market survey from an independent real estate broker.  Upon 

confirmation of the estimated fair market value, the General Manager shall 

have delegated authority to acquire or dispose of the property in 

accordance with this policy.   

1.  For acquisition of property, the General Manager shall comply 

with the provisions of the Uniform Real Property Relocation and 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended.    

2. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager 

to have a fair market value of more than $2075,000 but not more than 

$150250,000, the General Manager shall obtain a market study from a real 

estate broker prior to consideration by the Board.    

3. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager 

to have a fair market value of more than $150250,000 the General 

Manager shall obtain an appraisal from a real estate appraiser prior to 

consideration by the Board. 



Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 
{04244875-8 } 6 

F. For acquisition of property for which CRW receives or uses federal

financial assistance in any part of the project, the General Manager shall comply 

with the provisions of the Uniform Real Property Relocation and Acquisition 

Policies Act of 1970, as amended.   

G. All appraisal reports shall comply with the standards for appraisals as published in

the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) in effect at

the time of the appraisal.  The appraisal and level of documentation will depend

on the complexity of the appraisal problem.  All appraisals must contain sufficient

documentation, including valuation data and the appraiser’s analysis of that data,

to support the opinion of value.

H. The General Manager may release any interest CRW might have in a public

utility easement if the encumbered property is not served by CRW, the

encumbered property is within the limits of a city, and the General Manager

determines that CRW is unlikely to serve the encumbered property in the future.

No appraisal is necessary for the release of a public utility easement under this

subsection.

Legal References   ORS 264.210, 49 CFR Part 24 

Section 3.6   Investment of Funds 

A. CRW’s policy is to invest   a maximum of surplus-available funds as is

reasonably prudent, while having available cash on hand to meet daily operating

needs.

B. TheThe General Manager, or designee, is the Investment Officer for CRW will be

designated in the CRW Investment Policy adopted by the Board.

C. The Investment Officer shall adhere to the rules set forth in Oregon Revised

StatutesORS 294.035, and ORS 294.040, and the the CRW Investment Policy

adopted by the Board.

D. Diversification of investments will be in accordance with the CRW Investment

Policy.

E. The Investment Officer will provide the Board with a register of outstanding

investments on at least a quarterly basis.  This report will include the name of the

financial institution, issue date, maturity date, principal invested, and the interest

rate, if applicable.

Legal References   ORS 294.805 to 294.885, ORS 295.002 to, ORS 295.093

Section 3.7   Borrowing 



 

  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024 

 

{04244875-8 } 7 

A. Staff shall recommend, and the Board shall approve, the total amount of short-

term loans when borrowing is necessary.  

B. CRW is authorized to contract for short-term loans for the purpose of meeting 

current expense. These notes shall be signed by the Board President and 

Treasurer. 

C. CRW has authority to issue Revenue Bonds by resolution in accordance with 

Oregon State Law. 

Legal References   ORS 287A.180, 287A.150  

 

Section 3.8    Acknowledgement of Payments 

Staff shall provide the Board with a monthly report of all expenditures.  The Board will 

review and acknowledge the expenditure report at its regular meeting in the month that is 

two months after the month of the report.  all expenditures made for the prior month at 

their monthly business meeting. 

 

Section 3.9    Accounting Policy 

CRW’s financial and accounting procedures, records and reporting will be in accordance 

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Government 

Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative guidance.  

 

Section 3.10    Audit 

The General Manager, or designee, will work with the auditor selected in pursuant to 

Section 2.8 of these Board Policies each year to accomplish the objective of the annual 

audit. 

Legal Reference ORS 297.405 et. seq. 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 1  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

  

SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

4.1  Personnel 

4.2  Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies 

4.3  Employment Classification of Commissioners 

4.4  Safeguarding Assets 

4.5               Use of CRW Property 

4.6.  Risk Management and Insurance Program  

4.7  Insurance Agent of Record  

4.8  Property Appraisal  

4.9  Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property  

4.10  Pension Plan  

4.11  Records Management  

4.12  Annexation, Merger, Consolidation  

   

 



 

{04244875-8 } 2  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

Section 4.1    Personnel 

CRW is committed to equal employment opportunity.  Management is required to recruit, 

employ, train, transfer, promote, pay, discipline, lay off, and terminate employees solely 

on the basis of individual qualifications and merit and/or according to the standards and 

policies outlined in its personnel and related policies.  Decisions involving any aspect of 

the employment relationship must be made without regard to an employee's race, color, 

creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, marital status, physical or mental handicaps that 

with reasonable accommodation do not prevent performance of the work involved, or any 

other status or characteristic protected under any applicable federal or state law. 

Discrimination or harassment based on any of those factors is totally inconsistent with the 

Board's philosophy and will not be tolerated at any time. 

(Whenever the pronoun "he" is used it is solely for editorial reasons.  All positions are 

open to employees of either gender.) 

 

Section 4.2    Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies 

The General Manager shall prepare and modify personnel and employment policies in 

compliance with Oregon state and Federal federal law and general CRW Board  policy 

applicable to personnel.  The General Manager shall provide copies of any personnel 

manual or policy and modifications to such manual or policies at such time as they are 

implemented by the General Managerto a Commissioner upon request. 

 

Section 4.3    Employment Classification of Commissioners 

The District’s Commissioners, whether elected or appointed, are employees for tax 

withholding purposes only.  Commissioners are not entitled to any employment related 

benefits as required by law or as otherwise provided in subsequent sections of CRW’s 

personnel policies or manual.  

 

Section 4.4    Safeguarding Assets  

The CRW Board of Commissioners fully supports a structure of policies and procedures 

that systematically provide reasonable assurance that management will achieve its basic 

objectives (operations, financial reporting, and compliance).  This policy includes the 

following five components: 

1. Provide a favorable control environment; 

2. Provide a periodic risk assessment; 



 

{04244875-8 } 3  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

3. Provide for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective control 

activities; 

4. Provide for effective information and communication; and 

5. Provide for ongoing monitoring of the effectiveness of control-related policies 

and procedures, as well as the resolution of any potential problems identified. 

Source:  Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting (GAAFR), 

Stephen J. Gauthier.  Copyright 2012 by the Government Finance Officers Association of 

the United States and Canada, Chicago, IL, (p. 736)  

 

Section 4.5      Use of CRW Property 

A. Board Use of CRW Property:  The Board isCommissioners are required to 

comply with Oregon Government Ethics Law the ethics laws of Oregon (ORS_ 

244.010 TO to 244.047) in the use of CRW property in the execution of their 

duties as a CRW Board memberCommissioner. 

1. Board MembersCommissioners are prohibited from loaning CRW property 

without approval of the Board. 

2. It is the policy of CRW to loan equipment to other Districts special districts or 

Governmental governmental agencies when it does not adversely impact 

operations.  The General Manager will determine methods of remunerations 

and charges as defined in miscellaneous fee schedule. 

B. Employee Use of CRW Property: CRW employees are required to comply with 

the ethics laws of Oregon Government Ethics Law (ORS 2_44.010 to 244.047) as 

well as Operations and Personnel Policies of CRW.  The General Manager will 

administer all policies related to acquisition, use, and disposition of CRW 

property. 

1. Employees are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval of the 

General Manager. 

2. CRW property is defined as all tools, equipment, material, and facilities - 

regardless of cost - owned or leased by CRW. 

3. In the event of an emergency, employees are permitted to load loan equipment 

to other governmental agencies and then report to the General Manager 

following the emergency. 

 

Section 4.6    Risk Management and Insurance Program 

A. The Board shall provide a program of risk management consistent with legal 



 

{04244875-8 } 4  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

requirements pertaining thereto and with the ability of CRW to finance the same. 

B. CRW staffThe General Manager and the Insurance Agent of Record will 

recommend, and the Board will review and approve, the purchase of necessary 

insurance or a self-insurance program sufficient to meet minimum statutory 

requirements and provide for adequate insurance for all activities.  Any self-

insurance program adopted by CRW shall provide for reasonably adequate 

reserves.   Coverage shall be adequate to protect: 

1. Itself as a corporate body  

2. Its Board of Commissioners 

3. Its individual members 

4.3. Its appointed officers 

5.4. Its employees 

Except for acts outside the scope of duties, criminal or the result of willful or 

wanton misconduct, tThe above entities and individuals are to be insured against 

financial loss to the extent required or authorized by law where the loss arises out 

of a claim, suit or judgment by reason of  negligence or other acts resulting in 

accidental injury to a person or damage to property within or without CRW while 

the above named insured are acting in the discharge of their duties within the 

scope of their obligations as Board memberCommissioners or as employees 

carrying our their duties.  Normally, Board memberCommissioners will not be 

held personally liable for the consequences of their actions and decisions in 

fulfilling Board responsibilities.  However, Commissioners will be held 

personally liable in the event they have acted outside the scope of their duties (as 

defined in Section 1 of Board Policy) or their conduct is not required to, or cannot 

be, indemnified by CRW.  

C. The Board District shall purchase insurance to cover or self insure: 

1. All real and personal property of CRW. 

2. Losses due to employee dishonesty, injury or death. 

3. A program of benefits for employees to the limits established from time to 

time by the Board. 

D. CRW shall require contractors doing business with CRW to carry general liability 

and automobile liability insurance (for any automobiles used to perform services 

for CRW). Prior to the commencement of any work or services secured by 

contract with CRW, the contractor shall procure, and thereafter during the term of 

the contract continue to, carry general liability and automobile liability (to the 

extent applicable), insurance with a company or companies authorized to issue 

insurance in the State of Oregon with limits provided by the contract.  Such 



 

{04244875-8 } 5  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

insurance shall cover all risks arising directly or indirectly out of the contractor's 

activities or performance.  Certificates evidencing such insurance and bearing 

endorsements naming CRW as an additional insured, on such policy or policies of 

insurance shall be delivered to CRW.  The certificate shall require not less than 

ten (10) days' written notice to CRW prior to any change of the coverage’s or any 

portion thereof and notice to CRW in the event of cancellation of such policy or 

coverage’s.  Additionally, all contracts shall contain a provision by which the 

contractor shall indemnify and defend CRW from any claim, loss or liability 

arising out of, or related to any activity, performance or nonperformance of the 

contractor in connection with said contract.  The provisions for insurance and 

indemnification in all contracts shall be reviewed and approved by CRW’s legal 

counsel.  The limits of liability for each contractor will meet or exceed the Oregon 

Tort limit requirements for Oregon Special Districts, unless otherwise agreed to. 

E.D. The General Manager shall develop and maintain procedures and regulations to 

carry out this policy and may designate CRW employees to administer and 

supervise the program. 

1. The person(s) so designated shall be guided by the reasonable person rule 

and shall: 

i. Identify and measure those risks. 

ii. Evaluate physical properties owned or leased by CRW. 

iii. Establish risk management records to reflect values of such property. 

iv. Establish procedures to maintain property and designate security 

personnel to protect property. 

v. Establish procedures for good housekeeping, safe environmental 

conditions for employees and members of the public.  

vi. Establish procedures for handling of risk management funds and 

record keeping. 

vii. Utilizing the services of the CRW's insurance consultant and/or Broker 

to determine which risks can normally be assumed as a proper 

business risk and which risks shall be ceded to professional risk 

bearers considering: 

2.1.Frequency and magnitude of loss; and 

3.2.The ability of the CRW to replace damaged property. 

 

Section 4.7    Insurance Agent of Record 



 

{04244875-8 } 6  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

A. CRW will retain an insurance agent of record for casualty and property insurance, 

bonds, and workers’ compensation.  

B. The agent will be designated by the Board for a period to be determined by the 

Board with an annual review of the type and quality of service and the insurance 

program recommended by such agent.  Any appointment shall comply with 

CRW’s Local Contract Review Board Rules.The term of such contract shall be 

for such period as the Board shall determine is in the best interest of CRW, 

provided that the term shall not exceed the length allowed by CRW’s Local 

Contract Review Board Rules. 

C. The agent shall be responsible for assisting CRW with the development of a 

sound risk management program and for writing and servicing all necessary 

policies and statutory bonds. 

D. CRW may require the agent of record to develop and deliver the annual risk 

management report to the Board of Commissioners.  If so required, CRW will 

maintain the right to edit and finalize the report prior to it being delivered to the 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Section 4.8    Property AppraisalValuation for Insurance Purposes 

A. CRW shall maintain an up-to-date appraisal valuation of all buildings, including 

improvements, fixtures, and fixed contents, as necessary to inform decisions on 

property and casualty insurance. 

B. The appraisal shall be conducted by an appraiser who is certified or has a history 

of successful experience in the field.  This appraisalA valuation may be 

performed by CRW's insurance agent of record. 

C. Effective in 1997, a physical reappraisal of replacement values on property and 

improvements shall be conducted no less than each ten (10) years.  All values of 

all buildings shall be updated at least annually or more often if necessary. 

 

Section 4.9   Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property 

A. CRW shall dispose of surplus or unusable property in accordance with Oregon 

Statutes statutes and Local Contract Review Board Rules adopted by the Board. 

 

 

 

Section 4.10    Pension Plan 

A. CRW is a Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) participating agency. 

B. CRW also authorizes participation in qualified 457-type retirement plans. 



 

{04244875-8 } 7  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

 

Section 4.11    Records Management 

A. The Board directs the General Manager to develop policies that conform to the 

Secretary of State Archives Division public records retention schedule applicable 

to special districts. 

B. Compliance with the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.410 311 through 

192.505478), including proper filing and retention of records in accordance with 

these statutes, Oregon Administrative Rules 166-150-0005 to 166-150-0215 as 

applicable, and CRW’s Record Management Policy, shall be required of all 

employees and Board membersCommissioners. 

 

Section 4.12  Annexation, Merger, Consolidation Policy   

A.  The Board will consider all annexations where the annexing entity proposes to 

automatically withdraw the territory annexed.  The Board will generally not 

oppose annexations where the property owner has requested annexation in order 

to receive other services.  The Board, however, retains the right to oppose 

annexations that may have a deleterious effect on CRW’s operations and/or 

financial well-being, or is otherwise considered not to be in the best interest of 

CRW.  The General Manager shall render an  opinion on any such action prior to 

Board consideration. 

B. The Board may consider the concept of consolidation or merger with adjoining 

governmental entities providing water services. 



 

{04244875-8 } 1  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

  

SECTION 5  GENERAL MANAGER ROLE 

 

5.1  General Manager as Administrator of CRW  

5.2  General Manager Appointment and Terms of Employment 



 

{04244875-8 } 2  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

  

Section 5.1    General Manager as Administrator of CRW  

A. In accordance with the policies adopted by the Board, all administrative and 

operational functions are delegated to the General Manager.  

B. The General Manager shall create and maintain an organizational structure such 

that staff is arranged for efficient and effective operation of CRW. 

C. In all areas, the General Manager is delegated to develop and maintain the water 

system at levels necessary to maintain CRW’s investments. 

 

Section 5.2    Appointment and Terms of Employment - General Manager 

A. The General Manager shall be appointed and work at the pleasure of the Board. 

B. The terms of employment shall be agreed upon by the Board and the General 

Manager and be reduced to writing in the form of an employment contract 

between CRW and the General Manager. 

C. The Board shall review the position, the person, and the terms of employment 

annually.  The results of the review shall be contained in an annual evaluation. 

D. The terms of employment shall include, but not necessarily be limited towithout 

limitation: responsibilities of the General Manager, demonstrable skills, and 

salary and benefit considerations. 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 1  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

  

SECTION 6 PURCHASING/CONTRACTING 

 

6.1  General 

6.2  Responsibility, Authority, Standardization 

6.3  Sales to Outside Agencies 

 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 2  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

Section 6.1    General 

CRW recognizes that effective purchasing policies can result in significant 

savings.   In accordance with ORS 279A.060, CRW has adopted Local Contract 

Review Board Rules.  Clackamas River Water’s Board of Commissioners is the 

Local Contract Review Board and acts as such. 

 

Section 6.2    Responsibility, Authority, Standardization 

A. The General Manager is responsible for the procurement of all goods and services 

and for establishing procedures to sell goods and services. 

B. Standardization of supplies, materials and equipment is to be achieved whenever 

possible. 

C. Only persons designated by the General Manager are authorized to order or 

otherwise commit CRW for materials, equipment, supplies and services. 

D. Board MemberCommissioners may not contact vendors, consultants or other 

parties having an existing contractual relationship with CRW related to current 

agency business or relationships without first being authorized for such contact by 

a majority vote of the CRW Board. 

 

Section 6.3   Intergovernmental Cooperation 

A. Whenever feasible, CRW will attempt to develop cooperative agreements with 

federal, state, or local governmental agencies to promote the efficient use of 

resources by sharing facilities and avoiding duplication of services. Charges No 

service charges will be added tofor goods or services sold to participating 

governmental agencies will be limited to their direct and indirect costs. 

B. All agreements between with other government agencies will be in writing and 

any agreement that exceed the General Manager’s contracting authority will be 

submitted to the Board for approval unless the Board has delegated applicable 

contracting authority to the General Manager.  

 

 

 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 1  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

  

SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

 

7.1  Communication with the Public and News Media 

7.2  Gifts and Donations 

7.3  Public Records 

7.4  Participation in Community Affairs 



 

{04244875-8 } 2  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

 

Section 7.1    Communications with the Public  

Public involvement with CRW will beis encouraged. In order to foster that involvement, 

the General Manager shall keep the public informed of relevant polices and directives in 

a manner consistent with ORS 192. 

A. Nothing in this section shall prevent CRW employees from taking an active part 

in community affairs. 

B. Employees are entitled to enter into political activity provided it is done on their 

own time that no political pressure is placed upon other employees, and that all 

political activities are in conformance with ORS 260.432. 

 

Section 7.2    Gifts and Donations 

A. CRW may accept gifts, grants, donations, and title to property from parties 

desiring to convey property to CRW.  Upon receipt, CRW shall have sole and 

complete control of same.  The Board shall may recognize the receipt of gifts and 

donations. 

 

B. The Board shall recognize presentations of memorials or other awards without 

such recognition being considered as a testimonial or endorsement by CRW. 

 

Section 7.3    Public Records 

Public records are to be created, maintained, retained and destroyed pursuant to the definitions 

and requirements of ORS Chapter 192. 

A. Public records are to be created, maintained, retained and destroyed pursuant to 

the definitions and requirements of ORS chapter 192. 

B. Clackamas River WaterCRW shall comply with the Oregon Public Records Law, 

ORS 192.410311-192.505478. Access to public records will be provided pursuant 

to a Public Records Policy adopted by the General Manager and made available to 

the public. 

A.C. The Board designates the General Manager as CRW’s records custodian.  The 

General Manager may delegate records custodian functions to CRW staff. 

B. Public Record Requests:  In order to facilitate the public's access to 

records in CRW's possession, and to avoid unnecessary expenditure of 

staff time, all requests for inspection or copies of public records must be 

submitted to CRW in writing.  The written request shall specify the 

records requested with reasonable particularity, furnishing the dates, 



 

{04244875-8 } 3  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

subject matter and such other detail as may be necessary to enable CRW 

personnel to readily locate the records sought. CRW staff shall determine 

what records, if any, are subject to the requests that are exempt from 

public disclosure as provided by law. 

C. Access:  CRW shall permit inspection and examination of its non-exempt public 

records during regular business hours in CRW's offices, or such other locations as 

the Board may reasonably designate from time to time.  Copies of non-exempt 

public records maintained in machine readable or electronic form shall be 

furnished, if available, in the form requested.  If not available in the form 

requested, such records shall be made available in the form in which they are 

maintained.  ORS 192.440(2). 

D. Certified Copies:  Certified copies of non-exempt public records shall be 

furnished upon request and receipt of payment therefore.  

E.D. The Board, from time to time, may set a reasonable charge or fee, by resolution, 

for making public records available for inspection or copying, which charges or 

fees shall be applicable to all requests for inspection or copying made after the 

date of adoption of the applicable charge or fee. The General Manager, as the 

Custodian of Records, shall have the ability to waive charges or fees for requests 

requiring nominal effort or expense as the General Manager deems appropriate. 

Notwithstanding this CRW’s pPublic rRecords pPolicy, the Board, from time to 

time, may set policy and grant a waiver of fees with respect to public records 

requests by Commissioners relating to agenda items under current discussion by 

the Board. 

F.E. Authorization Required for Removal of Original Records 

1. An original record of CRW shall not be removed from CRW's files or the 

place at which the record is regularly maintained, except upon authorization of 

the Board. 

G. On-Site Review of Original Records 

1. If a request to review original records is made, CRW shall permit such a 

review provided that search charges or fees are paid in advance in accordance 

with paragraph E, above.  A CRW representative shall be present at any time 

original records are reviewed, and the charges for standing by while the 

records are reviewed shall be the same as the charges for searching or 

reviewing records. 

H.F. Unauthorized Alteration, Removal or Destruction of Originals 

1. If any person attempts to alter, remove, or destroy any CRW record, the CRW 

representative shall immediately terminate such person's review, and the 

person shall be removed from CRW premises. Nothing in this policy Board 

Policy shall prevent the destruction of public records as is allowed by Oregon 



 

{04244875-8 } 4  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

lawthe Secretary of State’s statutes, rules or guidelines relating to public 

record retention and destruction. 

 

 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 5  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

 

SECTION 8  COST OF WATER SERVICE AND SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 

 

8.1   Billing and Collection 

8.2   Water Loss Policy 

8.3   Meter and Service Installation Charges 

8.4   Water Critical Customers 

8.5   Service to Other Entities 

8.6   Availability of Service 

8.7   System Safety and Water Quality 

8.8   Local Improvement District (L.I.D.) 

8.9   Metering  

8.10   Developer Installed Systems  

 

 



 

{04244875-8 } 6  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

Section 8.1    Billing and Collection 

It is the policy of CRW that all customers pay for the costs of providing water to their 

premises.  The Board will adopt rules and regulations, water rate structures, and other 

resolutions and ordinances that provide details on the conditions and costs for those 

services.  These will be periodically reviewed periodically and updated by the General 

Manager and submitted to the Board for consideration and adoption. 

 

Section 8.2    Water Loss Policy 

Recognizing the possibility of water leakage within the customer-owned system, leakage 

is generally non-disputable and at the customer’s expense.  If any adjustment is to be 

made it will be consistent with the CRW Leak Adjustment Policy adopted by the Board.   

 

Section 8.3    Meter and Service Installation Fees 

A. The fees for meter and service installation will be set by the Board and reviewed 

annually. 

B. When the meter is purchased, the customer will pay the balance due, plus a 

system development charge (SDC) as applicable.     

 

Section 8.4    Water Critical Customers [deleted] 

A. CRW provides reasonable notice of temporary service interruptions to customers 

who have been identified as a “water critical user” so they can have an opportunity to 

secure an alternate supply of domestic water during the service interruption. 

B. "Water Critical Customer" shall mean any person who notifies CRW in writing 

that domestic water is critical to the health or health maintenance of the customer. Water 

critical customers may include, but are not limited to, those customers using kidney 

dialysis machines, elderly individuals living alone and bedridden or other chronically ill 

individuals. 

C. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to establish and 

implement a procedure whereby water critical customers may notify the General 

Manager in writing that they are a water critical customer and wish to be notified in the 

event of temporary service interruptions. 

D. It is not the intent or purpose of the water critical customer policy to amend or in 

any manner alter the Rules and Regulations of the CRW relating to the purchase of and 

payment for water by water critical customers or the adopted Rules and Regulations 

relating to the nonpayment of water charges, fees, or the sanctions for the misuse of 

CRW property. 

 

Commented [BS1]: In the alternative to deleting Section 8.4, the 

following could be added:   

 

“Nothing in this Section 8.4 shall be construed as the adoption of a 

standard of care applicable to CRW.  The Board, in behalf of CRW, 

disclaims any and all liability, under any legal theory, based on an 

alleged failure to take any actions specified in this Section 8.4.” 



 

{04244875-8 } 7  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

Section 8.5    Service to Other Entities 

CRW may sell surplus water to other governmental entities upon Board approval and in 

accordance with the requirements of ORS Chapter 264. 

 

Section 8.6   Availability of Service 

The Board directs the General Manager to establish policies to provide our CRW’s 

customers with uninterrupted service. 

 

Section 8.7   System Safety & Water Quality 

The Board directs the General Manager to ensure there are appropriate policies and 

procedures to comply with State and Federal mandates for location and protection of 

underground facilities for the installation and maintenance of backflow devices. 

 

Section 8.8    Local Improvement District (L.I.D.) 

Upon petition by CRW customers, the Board authorizes the General Manager to begin 

the procedure to establish a Local Improvement CRW (L.I.D.) under provisions of ORS 

264.362. 

 

Section 8.9   Metering 

A. Clackamas River Water reserves the right to determine the proper meter size and 

configuration to be used to supply its customers.  Criteria to be used in such 

determination are: 

1. Type of building being serviced. 

2. Size of building being serviced. 

3. Occupancy of building being serviced. 

4. Construction/facilities of building being serviced, including fixture units as 

determined by the County Plumbing Department. 

5. Usage to which building is to be applied. 

B. Metering devices are to be installed in accordance with CRW rules and 

regulations.  Any exceptions are to be approved by the Board.   

 



 

{04244875-8 } 8  
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024 

 

Section 8.10    Developer Installed Systems 

All new water mains will be installed in accordance with CRW’s water extension 

procedures and CRW’s water system standard specifications. 

 



 

{04244875-8 }  

 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

 

BOARD POLICIES RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM 

 

I am a duly elected Commissioner of the board of Clackamas River Water and hereby acknowledge 

that I have been provided a copy of the Board Policies, and that it contains important information 

regarding my role as a Commissioner.  I have read and understand the policies contained in the 

Board Policies and have asked the currently presiding board president or the general manager for 

clarification of any information that I did not understand or had further questions regarding.   

 

By my signature below, I agree to observe and comply with all policies and guidelines contained in 

the Board Policies. 

 

 

 

       

Commissioner’s Name (Print) 

 

              

Commissioner’s Signature      Date 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 

 

 

SECTION 1  BOARD OPERATION DEFINITIONS  

 

SECTION 2  BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD 

 

SECTION 3  BUDGET & FINANCE  

 

SECTION 4  BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

SECTION 5  GENERAL MANAGER’S ROLE  

 



{04244875-8 }

SECTION 6 PURCHASING / CONTRACTING 

SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE & SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

BOARD POLICIES 



 

{04244875-8 }  

 

 

 

Complete Revisions 

October 2013 

 





























Agenda Item - 7 

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

June 13, 2024 

SUBJECT 

DRAFT MOTION 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

PRINCIPAL STAFF 

PERSON 

BOARD ACTION 

REQUESTED 

DOCUMENTS 

ATTACHED 

BACKGROUND 

STAFF 

RECOMMENDATION 

]t111e 13, 2024 

Consider Approval of Contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Se1vices 
Exceeding the General Managers Signature Authority 

I move the Board to authorize the contract extension with S 2 Contractors 
for Paving Se1vices for a not-to-exceed amount of $90,000 and authorize the 
General manager to sign the contract. 

June 13, 2024 

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager 

The Board is being asked to authorize the General Manager execute a contract 
with S 2 Contractors for a not-to-exceed amount of $90,000. 

none 

Agenda Summary 

CRW has contracted with S 2 Contractors for paving se1vices since 2020 by 
participating in established contracts through the City of Lake Oswego. CRW 
has been happy with the quality of work provided by S 2 Contractors. The 
contract provides Paving Se1vices that are used for pavement repairs in concert 
with scheduled and emergency system maintenance of the CRW water 
distribution system. Staff is requesting that the General Manger be authorized to 
sign a contract that allows continued participation in the cooperative purchasing 
agreement established by the City of Lake Oswego. 

Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract with S 2 Contractors for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $90,000. 

Agenda Item 7 Page 1 r
f

t 

DELETED

























Monthly Update June 2024 1 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Clackamas River Water 

 

Monthly Update 

 

  

June 2024 

  



Monthly Update June 2024 2 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Table of Contents 

 

Monthly Update .............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Purchase Order 

Report…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...3 

Contracts Log .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Summary of Legal ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Public Records Request Received ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Financial Reports ......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Statistics ...................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Activity Reports ........................................................................................................................................................... 7 

System Operations .......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Operation Statistics ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Project Updates ...................................................................................................................................................... 9-10 

Water Resources & Water Quality ................................................................................................................................ 11 

Water Distribution Charts ......................................................................................................................................... 11 

Sampling Reports ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Regulatory ............................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Non-Regulatory ..................................................................................................................................................... 12 

River Flow Conditions Report ................................................................................................................................... 13  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Monthly Update June 2024 3 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Purchase Order Report- May 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Monthly Update 



Monthly Update June 2024 4 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Contract Log 

(Executed since last board meeting May 15, 2024) 
 

Company Product / Service Rates Eff. Date Exp. Date New/Amended/ Extended 

 
Alexin Laboratories 

 
General Lab Services 

 
NTE $50,000 

 
5/1/24 

 
4/30/25 

 
Extended 

 
Carollo Engineers 

On-call for Water 
Treatment Plant 
Projects 

 
 
NTE $40,000 

 
 
5/6/24 

 
 
10/31/24 

 
 
New 

 
Clark Land Resources 

Right of way 
acquisition-Bradley 
Pump Station 

 
 
NTE $15,000 

 
 
5/14/24 

 
 
4/30/25 

 
 
New 

Ecamsecure Security System 
equipment & labor 

 
NTE $215,381 

 
9/14/24 

 
6/30/24 

Extended. Approved by the 
Board Sept 2023 

Executive Security 
Services 

Patrol Services 
(routine & Park) 

 
NTE $85,000 

 
5/1/23 

 
4/30/25 

Approved by the Board May 15, 
2024 

 
Grainger, Inc. 

Maintenance 
Supplies 

 
 

 
7/1/18 

 
12/31/24 

Extended-Cooperative contract 
participation 

 
RH2 Engineering, Inc. 

WTP Concrete repair 
& seismic Imp. 

 
NTE 143, 329 

 
11/9/23 

 
3/31/25 

NTE increase, approved by the 
Board Nov. 2023 

      

      

      

      

 

 

Summary of Legal  

                                                                                                                                 May 2024   
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick monthly retainer $  4,600.00  

Harrang Long Gary Rudnick work outside of retainer/Client Cost $     

Sub-contracted legal services $__     ____  

Total Legal $  4,600.00 

 

 

Public Records Request Received 

Number of Records Requests Received in May 2024                                        1 



Monthly Update June 2024 5 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Financial Activity 

 

 

1) SDC revenue picked up a few more applications in May. 2) Interest Other Fund revenue is higher primarily due to 

increasing interest rates and a higher account balance. 3) CIP expenditure is high due to the completion of the Valve 

Replacement project and increased activity on the Redland Rd project.  4) Unanticipated expenses in Contract Work in 

Materials and Services are the main drivers for the higher-than-normal total.  5) There are no costs for CIP Bond or 

CRWSC as those funds have been closed out but will be reported in the 5-year graph. 6) GF-Capital Outlay is higher than 

prior years due to purchased equipment related WTP project. 

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Debt Services $1,251,025 $1,258,250 $1,238,000 $1,239,000 $1,238,300

CRWSC Activity $851,180 $900,875 $859,974 $0 $0

CIP Bond Construction $4,141,907 $79,025 $0 $0 $0

CIP Expenditures $97,790 $68,263 $59,640 $375,262 $3,211,086

GF-Capital Outlay $317,482 $693,064 $384,800 $754,246 $960,846

GF-Materials & Services $3,327,009 $3,422,932 $3,693,751 $3,954,428 $4,499,210

GF-Personnel Services $4,882,347 $4,508,949 $4,374,349 $4,877,299 $4,994,212

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

In
 $

Expenditures through May

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Other General Fund $351,674 $356,178 $552,342 $707,780 $595,055

CRWSC Revenue $181,134 $59,826 $41,866 $0 $0

SDC $505,174 $990,677 $613,729 $193,141 $250,841

Interest Other Funds $99,930 $86,479 $69,950 $235,506 $1,097,501

Water Revenue $11,847,344 $12,490,945 $13,797,695 $14,301,601 $14,616,285

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Revenue through May



Monthly Update June 2024 6 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Statistics 

   (as of the end of May 2024) 
Residential Customers are billed on even months, Commercial Customers are billed on odd months.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cash/Check – Received via Lockbox, Counter  
Credit Card – Received via CRW Initiated Automatic Payment, Walk-ins/Phone Calls, and Website 
Electronic Funds Transfer – Received via Bank-to-Bank Transfer, Automatic Checking Withdrawal (RapidPay) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Reminder Phone Calls are made during the even months. Shut offs occur the following month. **Jan/Feb late notice 
number is an estimate *No late notices Sept-Dec. ’20; reinstated February and sent in May 2021  

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24

In
 #

s
Bill Payment Methods (Quantity)

Cash/Check Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

In
 #

s

Shut-off Stats

Late Notice Letter Reminder Phone Calls Total Shut-offs

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

In
 C

C
F'

s

Customer Consumption (based on billing)

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY2024

$0

$300,000

$600,000

$900,000

$1,200,000

$1,500,000

$1,800,000

$2,100,000

$2,400,000

May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24

In
 $

s

Bill Payment Methods (Amounts)

Cash/Check Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer



Monthly Update June 2024 7 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Activity Reports 

                                                (as of the end of May 2024) 
 

 

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

N
e

w
 M

e
te

rs
 In

st
al

le
d

 (
in

 #
s)

New Services Meter Installations

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

N
e

w
 M

e
te

rs
 In

st
al

le
d

 (
in

 #
s)

Replacement Meter Installations

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

No new services for Sept. FY21, April F22, Sept. FY 22, Sept. FY 23, Jan FY23, Oct. FY24, Jan FY24, Feb FY24 

 
Annual 2024 Goal for Meter Replacement is 350- Year to date is 208. 



Monthly Update June 2024 8 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

System Operations & Engineering 
Operation Statistics  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leak 
Repairs 
Made  

(all pipe 
sizes) 

Leak 
Detection 

Completed 
(miles) 

Hydrant 
Maintenance 

Locate 
Requests 

Valve 
Maintenance 
& Mapping 

After-
hours 

Callouts 

Meter 
Maintenance 

Tasks 

Cross 
Connection 
Inspections 

Jan. 2024 3 0 38 311 4 28 60 5 

Feb. 2024 0 0 109 340 116 3 0 13 

Mar. 2024 1 0 4 397 7 3 86 16 

April 2024 0 0 91 483 18 3 0 0 

May 2024 1 0 21 469 35 4 44 15 

June 2024         

July 2024         

Aug. 2024         

Sep. 2024         

Oct. 2024         

Nov. 2024         

Dec. 2024         

Total to 
Date 

5 0 263 2000 180 41 190 49 

2024 
Annual 
Goal 

N/A N/A 905      N/A 600 N/A N/A        96 

Note - Annual maintenance goals are established based on several criteria including; AWWA Best Management 
Practices, identified system priority maintenance and repair focus needs, and internal/external project forecasts. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Update June 2024 9 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

 

Project Updates  

Private Development Projects                                                                                 

Capital Project Status Report – May 2024    

Project No. Name 
Project 
Budget  

Spent to Date 
 Remaining 

Project Budget  
Project Status                                    

5301 Trans/CRW Impact Projects $250,000  $7,774 $242,226   

Utility coordination and adjustments at: Johnson Cr. Blvd at 79th Place Signals; ODOT 82nd Ave., Webster Rd. 

5303 82nd Dr. Waterline Phase 2 $1,041,000  $73,070 $967,930 In Design  

Design consultant progressing. Evaluating alternative routes.  

5291 I-205 Crossings:  $1,119,000 $116.748 $1,002.252 In Design 

Design consultant progressing. Evaluating alternative routes. 

5306 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 2 $1,355,000 $697,048 $657,952 Construction 

Contractor is demobilizing. Punch list items are ongoing. 

5307 Redland Rd. PRV $1,003,000 $18,408 $984,592 In Design 

Design underway. Survey in progress. 

5308 Low Lift PS Improvements $749,000 $0 $749,000 No Activity 

No Activity. 

5309 WTP Structural Improvements $1,000,000 $133,827 $866,173 Construction 

Construction during valve replacement complete. Evaluating next steps. 

5273 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 1 $666,000  $357,247 $308,753 Construction 

Waterline in service Construction punch list underway. 

5270 Linwood Road Improvements $210,000  $99,384  $110,617   Construction 

Punch list items are ongoing. 

5278 Monroe Street Improvements $850,000  $50,103 $799,897 In Design  

Design at 90% complete. Executed IGA with Clackamas Co. for construction tentative start summer of 2024. 

5280 Pump Station Chlorine $142,000  $3,603 $138,397  In Design  

Design at 30% complete. Construction tentative during summer of 2024. 

5281 WTP Polymer Feed System  $252,000  $938 $251,062 In Design  

Designing space and layout of proposed feed system on first floor of WTP. Construction tentative beginning of 2025. 

5282 WTP Filter Valve Replacement $1,302,000  $861,355 $440,645  Construction 

Valve installation complete. Plant is functioning normal. 

5305 
Webster Improvement at 
Bilquist School 

$0 $21,767 ($21,767)  In Design 

Finalizing plan for service adjustments prior to Clackamas Co. Road project. Bid opening scheduled in July. 

5292 
Johnson Creek Blvd 
Improvements 

$0 $2,004 ($2,004) In Design 

Coordinating utility conflicts for Clackamas County Road improvements. 

5312 Thiessen Rd. Culvert Crossing $0 $2,129 ($2,129) In Design 

Coordinating 8” waterline relocation to accommodate Clackamas County culvert replacement. 



Monthly Update June 2024 10 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

 

Project Updates 

 

Private Project Tracking – May 2024 

Project 
No. 

Name Description Phase Status 

20-5262 
Private 

Bonaventure 
Senior Living 

6” fire service and 3” 
meter 

Const. Site construction ongoing. 

21-5285 
Private 

130th Industrial 
Park 

3-fire services 
3-commercial services 

Const. Complete. 

21-5289 
Private 

224 Logistics 
Center 

Unified Grocer site; 4 
fire & 4 Domestic 
Services 

Const. 
Punch List. 
 

22-5295 
Private 

Jannsen Multi-
Family 

New fire and domestic 
service for 8-plex 
development. 

Const. On Hold. 

22-5298 
Private 

Serres Farms 
Subdivision 

7-lot of subdivision Const. Pending Construction Start 

23-5299 
Private 

Prologis Park 
Clackamas 

4-Warehouses with 
Fire and domestic 
service 

Const. Pending Construction Start 

23-5304 
Private 

WES - IT2 
30” Force Main 

Relocate waterline at 
four locations 

Const. Pending Construction Start 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                 



Monthly Update June 2024 11 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

Water Distribution Charts   

(as of the end of May 2024) 

 

  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

(i
n

 M
G

s)
Total CRW - Water Produced and Purchased

2022 2023 2024

0

100

200

300

400

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

C
R

W
 W

at
e

r 
Tr

e
at

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
t 

W
at

e
r 

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

 (
in

 M
G

s)

North Side - Water Produced

2022 2023 2024

0

15

30

45

60

75

90

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

So
u

th
 F

o
rk

 W
at

e
r 

B
o

ar
d

 (
SF

W
B

) 
W

at
e

r 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
d

 (
in

 M
G

s)

South Fork Water Board- Water Purchased

2022 2023 2024

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown  

 

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown  

 



Monthly Update June 2024 12 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

 

Sampling Reports 

                                                                                                                                            (as of the end of May 2024) 

 
Regulatory 

All 73 samples collected and analyzed for the April monitoring period showed no presence of coliform/E. 

coli bacteria. 

In February we began sampling for the Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR5) in both 

our North and South systems.  The second quarterly sampling event occurred during May.   

Cyanotoxin Testing 

Microcystin and Cylindrospermopsin sampling of our raw water began in May and occurs every two 

weeks for compliance.    

No cyanotoxins were detected in our raw water in May. 

Non-Regulatory 
General water quality parameters (pH, temperature, chlorine, TDS, hardness, alkalinity) were collected for the 
distribution system at 16 locations in the North and South systems. 
 
Monthly watershed sampling was conducted at 4 long-term sampling locations for total organic carbon, nutrients 
(nitrate/nitrite, total phosphorus, orthophosphate, etc.), coliform density, pH, dissolved oxygen, TDS, and 
temperature.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Monthly Update June 2024 13 | P a g e  
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx 

River Flow Conditions Reports                                                                                                                                                                              

• As of June 11th, the Clackamas basin snowpack has melted. The current Clackamas River 7-day average 
streamflow is 180% of normal (median). 
• May precipitation in the Clackamas basin was 136% of normal. Precipitation since the beginning of the water 
year (October 1 – June 10) has been 103% of normal.  
• The June through September streamflow forecasts in the Clackamas River at Estacada is near 100% of median.  
• The three-month outlook (Jun-Aug) from the NOAA Climate Prediction Center calls for an elevated chance of 
above normal temperatures, and elevated chances of below-normal precipitation for all of Oregon. 
 

 

 


	CRW 06.13.2024 Board Meeting Agenda
	CA 1 Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid
	CA 1 Earnings Statements
	CA 1 Monthly Check History Listing
	CA 2 Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report
	AG 1 Resolution No. 6-2024 A Resolution establishing retail water rates, system development charges, miscellaneous fees and charges for services
	AG 1 Exhibit A
	AG 1 Exhibit B
	AG 2 Consider First Reading, by title only, of Resolution 07-2024 amending Board Policy
	AG 2 Res. 07-2024
	AG 2 Redline of Board Policy
	AG 3 Consider approval of Resolutio No. 08-2024 Approve Utility billing Bad Debt write-off for FY 2023-24 Uncollectible water bills
	AG 3 Res. 08-2024
	AG 4 Consider Resolution No. 09-2024 updating the wholesale water rates charged to North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)
	AG 4 Res. 09-2024
	AG 5 Consider Approval of Contract extension with madrone technology for IT Support, equipment and subscriptions exceeding the General Managers Signature authority
	AG 5 Scope of Services
	AG 6 Consider Approval of INtergovernmental Agreement (IGA) extension between CRW and Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) for Emergency Management Coordination Services
	AG 6 Letter Requesting extension
	AG 6 IGA Extension
	AG 7 Consider approval of contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Services exceeding the General Managers Signature  authority
	AG 8 Management Report
	AG 10 Commissioner Reports and reimbursement requests
	AG 10 reimbursement requests
	AG 11 Election of Board Officers



